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198100 NSSD

Uvs

Aug-05 Sep-05 Oct-05 Nov-05 Dec-05 Jan-06 Feb-08 Mar06 . Apr-06 May-06 Jun-08 Jui-os

8,264 8,540 9,473 11,066 12,414 12,103 10,613 12,917 12,438 14.069| 13.752I 14,365

l

VILNIAIINOD ATHOIH

PVs

PVIUV

1,855 2,751 3,375 4,451 4,897 5,018 5,506 7,587 7,136 6,530 6,083 6,108

236.6382 322.1566 356.3191 402.2582 394.4865 414.6107 523.6822 685.0571 573.6402 464.1815 443.0338 425.2225



Per User

Acquisitions Price Users* Valuation
MySpace $580 27 - $21
IGN | $650 28 $23
MKTW $463 8 $58

Per User

Public Co's EV Users Valuation
CNET $1,400 116 $12
WebMD - $2,100 31 $68

* At time of acquisition
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Storm Duncan

. MR
From: Duncan. Storm
Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2006 5:35 PM
To: ‘storm@duncan.net’
Subject: ' Fw: snowmass material

Storm Duncan
Managing Director
Credit Suisse

650 California Street, 33rd Floor
San Francisco, CA. 94108

From: Salman Ullah
To: Boutros, George
CC: Duncan, Storm
View)] <dempsey@google.com>
Sent: Thu Oct 05 20:22:47 2006
Subject: Re: snowmass material

Dempsey, Sean [GOOGLE, INC. (Mountain

some more data:

Traffic: They are continuing to experience dramatic growth in playbacks. Yesterday's
peak for the week was about 180 million. The peak usage has shifted from the weekdays to
the weekend; they believe they are getting out of early adopter mode and are being used by
a more general audience as a form of weekend entertaimment. (Last week's distribution:
155-165M during the week, 170M on Friday, 180M on Saturday). Growth over the past month
has been about 5% week over week (the range for the first week in September was about 130-
150M. Ratio of view pages to search results pages is about 1:1. :

Registrations: Ranging from 250-300K per day since mid-September. Over 200K per day for
the whole month. :

Uploads: 101K uploads yesterday (range for the week 85-101K). Of yesterday's uploads,
17K were from first timers. Uploads per uploader are running at about 1.7-1.8.
Interestingly, the number of what they call "imbeds,™ that is traffic originating from
other sites, mostly myspace and eBay, was 22M (of the 180M). Less than I thought.

Community Features: User comments are holding steady at about 260K per day. An
increasing number, now between 2-3K daily, are in the form of video responses, with folks
actually taking the time to film upload their own video to make a comment. Although he
did not provide specific data, he said that the recently launched participatory video ads
are gaining traction as well. Musician channel sign-ups, which they launched a couple of
weeks ago, is running from 1,000 to 1,900 per day.

FINANCIALS

Revenue by month: June- 550K; July 850K; Aug- 2.4M; Sept. 3.5M. They are doing this with
two mid-level salespeople they hired from Yahoo, selling banners on the home and search
pages (no monetization of playback pages due to current DMCA policy).

Gross margin in August was 21%. Cost of goods includes data center expenses, depreciation
for their machines, and fees to use DART to serve ads. They're paying $0.04 CPM (and ran

1

 HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL | _ CSSU 001869



- 9B 1mpressions thiough ih Augusis.

om 1075706, Bontros;. ceorge < [

3 PR
will ant to. 3oy asap
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" From: Salman Ullah|

Sent: Thursday,- toner<ﬁq, 2506 LIIZ ¥H

Tu: Buutros, George

Ccs Duican, Storm; Dempsey, Sean [GOOGLE, INC. (Mountain View)]
9u~Je»u. Re! stiowmass material .

we'll need a list of questions/issues so we can get the right people from their side

involved.

on 10/5/06, Boutros, ceorge < [INNNNNENEENN -

\
H

Thanﬁs Salman. We will need to spend a couple of hours wi?h Y, will be painless I promise.

From: Salman Ullah

Sent: Thursday, October 05, 2006 5:05 PM

To: George Boutros; Storm Duncan

Cc: Dempsey, Sean [GOOGLE, INC. (Mountain View})}
Subject: snowmass material

project used to be called yellowstone. now it's snowmass.

attached is the xls with the model and assumptioné as wel? as the term sheet.
we can meet tomorrow to go over or later tonight. :
we neg& to get this done by monday.

thanks much,

Salman

Please access the attached hyperlink for an important electronlc conmunications
disclaimer: :

http://www.credit—suisse.com/legal/en/disclaimer_email_iﬁ.html
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Grgle inx. 0 U le Main 650 253.0000
1500 Ampimtheatre Parkway 4 Fax 650 253.0001

fAnuntain View. CA 94043 www.googie.com

October 4, 2006

YouTube, Inc.

71 E Third Avenue, 20d Floor

San Matco, CA 94401

Attn: Chad Hurley and Steven Chen

Dear Chad and Steven:

We are pleased to present you with the attached Term Sheet setting forth the basic tesms and conditions of the
proposed acquisition of YouTube, Inc. (the “Company”) by Google Inc. or one of its subsidiaries (“Google™).

The acquisition contemplated in this Term Sheet is subject to Google’s legal, financial and business due diligence
and to the preparation, execution and delivery of definitive purchase docnments. This Tenn Sheet is non-binding
and does not constitute or give rise to any legally binding commitment (nor does it constitute an offer to enterinto a
legally binding commitment) except for the provisions regarding Public Disclosure, Company No Shop,
Termination, Governing Law, and Expenses and Fees. Google and the Company understand that the Torm Sheet is
intended to set forth the fundamentals of the proposed acquisition, but that the foregoing intentions may be revised
and new issucs may be presented upon further investigation and due diligence by Google or the Company.

Please sign in the spaces provided below to acknowledge your agreement to the terms set forth in the Term Sheet as
the basis on which we will prepare definitive agreements and your agreement to be bound by the Public Disclosure,
Company No Shop, Termination, Governing Law, and Expenses and Fees provisions contained in the Term Sheet.

Rem

Name: Drummond
Title: Senior Vice President, Corporate Development

Acknowledged and agreed as of
the date first wriften above:

YOUTUBE, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:

Confidential Pagelof5 Non-bindiug Letter of Intent
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Term Sheet
For the Acquisition of YouTube, Inc.
By Google Inc.

October 4, 2006

mwsheaﬂumsma’)mnmﬁemipdmsmdomdiﬁomofmomosedmﬁﬁm
(“Acquisition”) of YouTube, Inc, (the “Company”) by Google Inc. or onc of its subsidiaries (*Google™).

Structure:

Acquisition Consideration:

Private Placement;
Registration Rights:

Employee Equity:

Confideatial

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

GooglewiﬂacqnireﬂmCompmyforthecomidemimsetfonhbelowpnmmt
10 a definitive agreement containing represcntations, wamantics, covenants,
legalopinions,condiﬁonsandindemniﬁwcustomwyﬁ)ramnsacﬁonofthis
type (the “Agreement”). The form of the transaction will be a merger.

ThcrepmentaﬁommgmdingtheCompanywﬂlbemadebytthompanyand
the principal stockholders of the Company.

GoogleandtheCompanyhtmddmtthemeﬁonwmbea'&mganizaﬁon"
withinthememingofSecﬁonof%S(a)oflhchxoodeandthn!mxwmelof
the Company will render an opinion to that effect.

Subjmmﬁooglc’sddhionaldtxedﬂigmeemdmthemmsandcondiﬁmof
this Term Sheet, in considerntion for all of the issued and ontstanding shares,
options (including any options assumed or substituted in conmection with the
Acquisiﬁon),waﬂantsmdotherequityintemtsofcompmy,attbecbdngof
theAeqnisiﬁon(the“Closlng")Googlewmissmanmxberofshmomegle
Class A Common Stock (“Shares”) equal to One Billion Six Hundred Fifty
Million Dollars ($1,650,000,000) based on the average daily closing price of the
Shares for the thirty (30) days immediately preceding the closing of the
Acquisition (the “Consideration™).

The Shares will be issued to the Company stockholders pursvant to the
exemption provided by Rule 506 of Regulation D (if applicable) promulgated
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Google shall provide Company
stockholders with customary registration rights for a transaction of this nature,
which will include a covenant by Google to file a resale rogistration statement
on Form S-3 within 30 days of the Closing,

Subject to Google's due diligence review, all options to purchase Company
capital stock outstanding immediately prior to the Closing, both vested and
unvested (each, an “Option”), will be assumed by Google and converted into
equivalent rights fo acquirc a sumber of Shares based on the total exchange
ratio applicable to the Acquisition, with such rights continuing to be subject to
vesting on current terms, Unvested options and shares that are returned due to
the termination of employment prior to the one year anniversary of the Closing
will be redistributed across the cap table in a manzer to be agreed by the parties.
For the avoidance of doubt, the amounts paid or issued to holders of Company
OpﬁonswillbeconsidemdpanoftheConsidemﬁon(Le;,dmConsidemﬁon
paid to the Company stockholders will be reduced to the extent of Share
issnances made in respect of the Company Options).

In addition to the acceleration provisions for certain key employees that exist as

Page2of 5 Non-bindisg Term Sheet
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Employment Arrangeinents:

Non-Competition
Agreements:

Principal Closing Conditions
and Covenants:

Signing Date; Closing Date:

Publie Disclosure:

Company No Shop:

Confidential

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

of the date of this Term Sheet, Google will discuss the provision of certain
additional aceelmﬁonpmvisionsﬁ:roﬂwrkaymploymbbeagmedby
Google and the Company. In addition, to the extent not already provided in the
rclcvantCompanydoumentaﬁon,andsubjecttothemluaﬁmpmvisims
Mamagrwdtobyﬂmpuﬁesasdiscmedabove,&oglemayseektoimlude
snitablemmtioppmvisionswiﬂtmspecttomekeyemployee&

1t shall be a condition to Google’s obligation to close the Acquisition that
wﬁn@mpmymlommwmmﬁﬁdhyﬁwﬂcahnmmma-
wiﬂmnpbymemwithcooglemdshanbaveentmdiMGoogle’ssmﬂmd
EmploymcntOﬂ'erLeMmdepﬁemylnfomﬁonmdlnmﬁons
Assigoment Agreement.

‘It shall also be a condition to the Closing that cestain Company stockholders to
be identified by Google shall have entered into a non-competition sgreement,
which will prohibit such Company stockholder from competing with the
Company’sbusin&forapetiodoft“mywsﬁomtheclosingdate.

TheAgwmunwillcomahclosingcondiﬁomcusmmaryforammﬁonof
th'snunuc,inchxding,withomﬁmitaﬁon,ﬁmtnoinjuncﬁon,orduorother
acﬁonwmbeineﬂ‘ectbymygovmemalagmcypmhibiﬁngmeAcqnisiﬁon;
anmquixedempmteandgovermtnlcomtsmdmboﬁuﬁmx(mbe
spwiﬁedinﬂxeAgrmm)willhavebeenmeived;thempmmﬁomand
wananﬁaoﬂhepaxﬁesintheAgmmentwinhavebeenhmandcmmctinan
mmialmspectswhenmadeandatﬂosing;meovemmsof!hepmﬁwinthe
Agxmmcntmqnﬁ:edtobesat‘uﬁedpriortommmhavebeensaﬁsﬁed;and
there shall be no material adverse change to Company’s business (provided that
the definition of “material adverse change” will exclude, among other things,
any change arising out of disclosed copyright risks, including lawsuits or the
threat thereof).

The Agreement will contain covenants customary for a transaction of this
pature, including, without limitation, covenants relating to the conduct of the
Company’s business between signing and closing, and no-shop provisions with
no fiduciary out.

The parties’ objective is to exccute the Agreement and closc the Acquisition as
soon as reasonebly practicable following the date of this Term Sheet.

Neither party shall issue any statement or communication to any third party
(other than to its legal and accounting advisors) regarding the Acquisition,
including, if applicable, its termination and the reasons therefor, without the
consent of the other party, except that Google may issuc any statement of
communication to the extent it determines jt necessary or appropriate in light of
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Until the earlier of (A) thirty (30) days from the date of this Term Sheet, (B) the
execution and delivery of the Agreement by all of the parties thereto, or (C) the
date on which Google advises the Company in writing that Google does not
wish to procced with discussions in respect of the proposed Acquisition
(including by terminating this Term Sheet), neither Company mor any of
Company’s affiliates shall (nor will they permit, as applicable, any of their
officers, directors, members, stockholders, agents, representatives or affiliates
to), directly or indirectly, take any of the following actions with any party other
than Google and its designees: (i) solicit, initiate, participate in or encourage
any negotiations or discussions with respect to any offer or proposal to acquire

Page3dof5 Non-biading Term Sheet
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Termination:

Due Diligenée:

Expenses and Fees:

Indemnification of Google:

Confidential

- HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

anypmﬁonofthecompany’sbnsimandpmpuﬁmormyshmof'

Coq)myupimlsmckotanyrightsqunﬁeanyshmuofCompmycapital
stnck,wheﬂnrbyﬁuuer,mhaseofasw&,pmhascormofshmor

rights to acquire shares, tender offer or otherwise, or effect any such ttansucion, .
(ﬁ)tﬁscloseanyinfomationthmarﬂydischsedtoaﬁypmmmmning :

Comfshsimmﬂmpuﬁesoraﬂnrdmanypmorenﬁtymm
itspxopuﬁes,bwksormds,(iii)assistwwopmﬁﬂtmypmm:mb
anypmpoealtop\uchaseanys!mmofCompanycapilalstockorﬁgh!sto
acqﬁmmymofCommycnpimlmckamyporﬁonofﬂnCompany’s
assets,or(iv)emerinmanyagreementwithanypmonpmvidingford:e
mqﬂﬁonofcompmy(wheﬁ:etbywayofmager,pmcweofm
pmchasoorissumeofshuworﬁghtstoacqnireshm&,mdaoﬂ‘eror
otherwise). lntheeventCompmyorauyofCompany’saEﬁliamsshallmeivc
any offer or proposal, directly or indirectly, of the type referred to in clause (i),
(iii)or(iv)above,oranyreq\mtfordisclomnorampmmmchuse(ii)
above,ConmmyornmhaﬁliatesballimmodiatelyinfonnGoogkasmﬂle
exis&meofmyamho&«orpmposalandwmcoopmwithcoogleby
ﬁnnishingmyinfomﬁonitmayreasomblyrequest,including,butmtﬁmiwd
to,dwnameoftbepmymakingmhoﬁérorpmpoml,allwdmn
docnmenmﬁm-rehﬁngtos\mhofferorpmpoulandasmnmaryofﬂmpﬁncipal
terms of any such offer or proposal that is not made in writing. .

ThisTeunSbetshalltumi_m&cnponthcwriwenmﬁﬁcaﬁonofsnch
mnnimﬁonbymypanyheretototheotherparﬁahm;,pmvidedtha!m

- provisions regarding Public Disclosure, Company No Shop, Termination,

Goveming Law, and Expenses and Fees shall survive any such termination in
accordance with the terms thereof. )

AssoonaspracﬁeableaﬁerthedatehemoﬂGooglcshallbepemﬁmdtomake
a full and complete investigation of the Company’s business, intellectual
property, technology, financial, employce and legal affairs. In addition, prior to
signingﬂleAgreement,tbeCompanyshanpmvideGoogle“mhreasonable
access to all members of Company’s management. The entering into of the
Agreement shall be subject to the satisfactory completion, in Google’s sole
discretion, of Google's due diligence on Company. :

All fees and expenses of Google in comnection with the Acquisition will be paid
byGoogle.AllfeesmdexpensesoftthompanymdtheCompany
stockholders in connection with the Acquisition, including broker or finder fees,
will be paid by the Company stockholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
the Acquisition is completed, Google shall pay up to Two Hundred Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($250,000) of the reasonsble and documented fecs and
expenses of the Company’s legal counscl incurred in comnection with the
Acquisition.

Indemnification. The Company and each of the Company stockholders will
jointly and severally indemnify and hold Google and its affiliates, and their
respective officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless from and against
losses or liabilities that may be suffered by Google due to any inaccuracies in or
breaches of represcntations, warranties and covenants or any other provision of
the Agreement or any ancillary document. In addition, the Company and each
of the Company stockholders will indemnify and hold Google harmless from
any losses or liabilities (including legal fees) relating to copyright lawsnits filed
against the Company or Google, during the period beginning on the date of this
term sheet and ending one year following the Closing, arising out of the
Company’s business (the “Copyright Litigation™).

Pagedof 5 Now-binding Term Sheet
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Voting Agreement

Governing Law:

Confidential

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL

& .

Survival. SubjectmmemhsofGoogic’sdnediligenccinngaﬁon,me
repmulaﬁmwmanﬁuandoommoﬁhe&mpmymdthe&mpany
Mmmmmwmmmmﬁmm
mmcmﬁmaﬁwmmﬁwmﬁvingoﬂyforoneywaﬁetﬁ\edosing;
provided that:
(@) mexepmmﬁommdwmnﬁarelawdmmshaﬂMvemﬁIGO
daysammea:phaﬁonofﬁneappﬁcabhmofﬁmitaﬁow
- (b) ﬂwrepmmmﬁmandwmanﬁutdawdmwpimﬁzaﬁonshallmvive
(c) claims for fraudulent, int jonal or willful breaches of representation
and warranties shall survive indefinitely

(collectively, the “Surviving Reprelentado.ns”).

Cap. The Company stockholders’ Hability for breaches of the Company

'onsandwanantiawillbelimitedmlzs%oftheaggxegate
Consideration, exwptnosuchcapahallapplywiﬂnmpectto any breaches of
the Surviving Representations. The Company stockholders’ liability for losses
relatedtotheCopyrightuﬁgaﬁonwinbelinﬁwdtoadxwdownagainsnhe
escrow, as set forth below.

Basket. Notwithistanding the foregoing, the Company stockholders will not be
liable for indemmification until the aggregate amount of losses exceeds One
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) (the “Threshold®); provided that (s) once the
Threshold has been met, the Company stockhoiders will be liable for the full
amount of all losses, including those which comprised any portion of the
Threshold, and (b) losses related to breaches of the Surviving Representations
shall not be subject to the Threshold. . '

BEscrow. 12.5% of the Consideration otherwise payable at Closing will be
deposited in escrow by Google for one year as non-exclusive security for the
Company stockholders’ indemnity obligations. A portion of the cscrow {up 10
5% of the Consideration) may be used to reimburse Google for losses related to
the Copyright Litigation. _
Congutrently with the execution of the Agreement, members of management
and certain stockbolders to be determined will exeoute an agreement lo vote
their shares in favor of the Acquisiﬁonandtonothansfeﬂheirshares or any
interest therein.

This Term Sheet and the letter to which it is attached shall be governed by
California law without regard to that state’s choice of law provisions.

[END OF TERM SHEET]

PageSof 5 Noa-binding Term Sheet
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Project Snowmass . CONFIDENTIAL

Preliminary Diligence Request List
October 2006

»  Organizational chart including employees by function and location

» Historical and projected financial information (through 2008E and beyond, if available),
including cash flow detail, operational break-even-and future financing requirements

= Revenue breakdown by segment or type: advertising, sponsorship / partner revenue,
subscriptions, etc.

= Pricing strategy
» Site traffic metrics including: unique visitors, registered members, subscriptions, etc.

» Video statistic detail including: (i) total # of videos on website, (ji) total # of uploads and
ey # of uploads per day, (iii) average # of videos viewed per day and (jv) average length of
roon* videos viewed

» Segmentation of video content by (i) category, (ii) type (commercial vs. non-commercial)
(iif) # of videos viewed on Yellow website vs. partner websites, (iv) public vs. private and
(v) estimate of % of video content that is copyrighted

» Platform scaiability metrics; cépital expenditure requirements

= Detailed capitalization table including description of all terms of outstanding common,
preferred (liquidation, participation, other preferences), and common equivalents

= Schedule of options, warrants, rights and any other potentially dilutive securities by
exercise price tranche and vested vs. unvested. Impact of change of control on each
security including options

» List and terms of any employee agreements

. » Review of threatened or pending litigation

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL : CSSU 001954
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